Performance Advisory Group
(PAG) 70

Location: MS Teams
Date and time: 15 January 2025, 1000 - 1200

Status of minutes: FINAL

Company No: 9276929 mosl.co.uk



Meeting Minutes

Market attendees

MOSL

Name ‘ (Initial) A Role/Organisation | Name (Initial) | Role/Organisation
Daniel Proctor DP Waterplus (R) Mike Rathbone MR Severn Trent (W)
Emily Jerome Ele Water2Business (R)  Noel Bradley NB Yorkshire (W)
Gerard Lyden GL Thames (W) Paul Baker PB Business Stream (R)
Gillian Bladen GB Southwest (W) Paul Walmsley PW Yorkshire (W)
Harriet Chappell HC Yorkshire (W) Peter Strain PS Castle (R)

Jamie Davies JD Castle (R) Robert RH Ofwat (O)
Hetherington

Jon Fuller JF Wessex (W) Shakima Fagan SF Everflow (R)

Jordan Wilburn JW Southern (W) Shaun Kent SK Ofwat (O)

Jordanna Lo JL Business Stream (R) Sian Forward SF Northumbrian (W)

Karen Winfield KW Anglian (W) Sindiso Bango- SBD Waterscan (R)
Dube

Mark Howell MH Waterplus (R) Tim Brewer TB Wessex (W)

Matthew Garfield MG Anglian (W) Wendy Monk WM Wave (R)

Michael Gadd MG United Utilities (W)

MOSL Attendees
Name (Initial) | Role Name (Initial) | Role
Chris Dawson @p) Chair Katherine Moore KM Observer
Katy Woodhouse KW Presenter Nichola Sampford NS Observer
Adam Richardson AR Presenter Oliver Robins OR Observer
Amanda Hinde AH Observer Sam Webb SwW Observer
Alexander Piper AP Observer Sauda Dickinson SD Notes
Amy English AE Observer Simon Bennet SB Observer

PAG70 15 January 2025



MOSL

Elliot Smith ES Observer Steve Formoy SF Observer
Evan Joanette EJ Observer Subhash Marti SM Observer
Janet Judge J) Observer Toby Hunt TH Observer
John Gilbert JG Observer

1. Welcome & update

CD welcomed all members to the meeting and confirmed the agenda.

CD reminded attendees that agenda, minutes and slides are published on the MOSL website for
review and questions and comments to be sent via mpfreform@mosl.co.uk.

CD presented a reminder on the delivery phases for part C and the MPF plan.

CD presented the progress overview of the MPF programme plan and delivery overview.

2. M18/M15 Transitional SLAs

KW presented a reminder of the M15 and M18 Bilateral metrics, as on slide 6.
KW presented Transitional SLAs, as on slides 8-9.

JW queried whether the new provisions would be based on when the C1-1 is closed and not
necessarily when the Bilateral is closed.

EJ confirmed and advised that it is referring to any relevant KPI SLA that is part of the service
request.

KW presented Transitional SLAs -Clean Break Approach, as on slide 10.

KW thanked NB for the helpful scenarios sent through to MOSL.

NB suggested amending condition 3 to state ‘OPS SLA end trigger not yet met'".

GL queried whether days late that apply to M15 are only late days from the 1° of April.

KW confirmed that the late days would start accruing from the 1* of April for any SLAs that are
overdue.

PAG70 15 January 2025 2



mailto:mpfreform@mosl.co.uk

MOSL

KW presented Condition 2: Number of SLAs, as on slide 11.

EJ advised that a lot of the requests discussed under Condition two are F5s, and the performance
team have not multiple times that these requests need to be closed. It will be on Retailers to close
these requests before the end of March under the old OPS.

NB noted support that the clean break approach is a good idea and advised that comms sent out
should state the request to review cases in date order and not focus on fails.

EJ advised that it would be up to Retailers how they choose to tackle closing these cases but that
the comms sent out would include a generic request for cases to be closed.

EJe requested MOSL send a list of the unclosed cases mentioned and queried whether we would
be looking at the status of ‘completed’ or ‘closed’, noting that there are many reasons why a case
would not be closed.

SW advised that it would be looking at the status of completed.

EJe noted that old cases follow over when a customer switches Retailers and the new Retailer
would not be able to close the case immediately.

EJ advised that Retailers should not be closing cases that should not be closed, but that if there is
an SLA that has already passed and the case is not closed by the deadline, it will not be counted
against the Wholesaler.

CD advised where Retailers want to resubmit a case, it would fall into Condition three where the
SLA is still open, and work will get picked up under the new regime.

KM confirmed that the stats presented are looking at instances where the SLA has ended, with a
complete status, but the whole request has not been closed yet.

JF queried, for a request that is raised before April, in the instance of resubmission, where the first
SLA has reached its completed trigger, whether the first SLA would be excluded but the second
SLA, after resubmitting, would fall into the new regime.

KM confirmed that the first SLA would be counted under OPS, but that in MPF, any resubmission
would go into performance.

JF noted that for the transitional period it would be possible to have a Bilateral with two completed
passes/fails or two completed runs of SLAs — one in the old regime which would not be counted
and one in the new regime counted for M18.

PAG70 15 January 2025 3




MOSL

EJ advised that the scenario could be added to the list of scenarios to be considered.

GL advised that an open OPS task that has been deferred and not reached its open OPS SLA end
date, would then count towards M18/M15 if the deferral comes off in April.

CD advised that the scenario would fall under Condition three.

NB noted that there are other examples to consider where Retailers would not have control, C1
and B1 SLAs could be untriggered by doing a plan proposed.

EJ requested NB send through some examples in writing and send through to MOSL for
considerations.

CD noted that there would be scenarios where requests cannot be closed due to the process, such
as a C1 going to proposed outcome as it requires more time and delay to get resolved.

EJ noted that there are some scenarios that would come up on the last few days before April that
will not be able to be closed in time and those will continue to be workable Bilaterals in the new
regime.

KW presented Transitional SLAs live during Go-Live, as on slide 12.

MG queried whether the Reports would be available in the original place within the Hub.

KW confirmed that Reports would be where they currently are and will be replacing the detailed
and monthly report.

MG queried whether the Bilateral Hub detailed report would be updated daily from April.

EJ advised that it is part of the plan to have them updated daily but that MOSL is still reviewing the
reporting uses.

MG noted that reports are used quite regularly by United Utilities.

GB queried when MOSL would be sending out communications to ensure efficient time for trading
parties to get sorted.

EJ advised that at least two phases of communications has been planned to be sent out, with the
first one to be sent out in the next week or two.

SM advised that existing reporting frequency may be changed and that the M18/M15 reports will
be on MyFiles and not on the Bilateral Hub but that final decisions on reporting would still be
communicated.

PAG70 15 January 2025 4




MOSL

EJ encouraged PAG members to reach out via email should they have any questions around
reporting.

3. OPS Dashboard & Holistic Reporting - Open Discussion

AR presented an overview of the “Human-readable” Reporting, as on slide 15.

GL suggested that the customer-focused reporting should be hosted in its own open area and
advised that some customers may need to drill into more of the detail and that peer-comparison
reporting would be important for trading parties.

AR agreed that we want to consider how the public view of the peer comparison is done to ensure
it is easy for customers to understand. The industry focused Dashboards enable trading parties to
see their own performance in context with their peers and that will not change moving forward.
Consideration will need to be taken around how publicly published and MyMOSL industry
Dashboards interact.

KW presented an overview of the As-Is OPS Dashboard - Overview Tab, as on slide 16.

GL suggested including a combined view in the Dashboard of how M18 and M15 will be measured
for Ofwat’s use in BR-MeX to avoid surprises in BR-MeX.

EJ advised that MOSL does not plan to include a view of what BR-MeX scores would look like as
the BR-MeX scores are something that Ofwat would be generating.

GL noted that having this view on the Dashboard would be helpful to trading parties.

EJ advised that including a combined view of the metrics would attract further engagements on a
metric MOSL does not own.

GL queried whether MOSL would also not be publishing any R-MeX, B-MeX or M12 data on any
Dashboards.

SW advised that MOSL would be publishing M12, M15 and M18 data individually, but that the
calculations done by Ofwat on those metrics would be calculated by Ofwat and not published by
MOSL. The same applies to B-MeX and R-MeX data.

GB confirmed that the data on the MOSL Dashboard would provide the data Ofwat would use to
generate the BR-MeX score and that trading parties should be able to piece together the data to
understand the BR-MeX score generated by Ofwat.

PAG70 15 January 2025 5




MOSL

JF advised that the Dashboard does have to be made useful for trading parties and noted that
Wessex does not use the current Dashboard but rather extracts the data and builds their own
Dashboard. JF suggested including a relative position to the industry mean as it would be a useful
enhancement and enable trading parties to benchmark their performance.

SK confirmed that the M18/M15 combined calculation will be owned by Ofwat for the purposes of
BR-MeX and advised that the other metrics that feed into BR-MeX are produced at different
frequencies. Ofwat wants to provide visibility to the industry on how BR-MeX is building up and
Ofwat would take away the action of considering the visibility of the combined metric to the
industry. SK reiterated that BR-MeX is an Ofwat metric, and the responsibility is on Ofwat to
provide the visibility.

KW presented an overview of the As-Is OPS Dashboard - by Standard, as on slide 17.

JF suggested having the performance data as the primary view (ie. the bar graph) on the
Dashboard when it is rebuilt.

KW requested JF share with MOSL what Wessex has done with their own Dashboard.
JF shared and talk through a view of Wessex’s internally built Dashboard.
KW presented an overview of the As-Is OPS Dashboard - Trading Parties Tab, as on slide 18.

PAG members agreed that be able to filter on BR-MeX and non-BR-MeX Trading parties
would be useful.

KW presented an overview of the As-Is OPS Dashboard - Detail Tab, as on slide 19.

KW noted that the same information is published both in the detail tab of the OPS Dashboard and
the Peer Comparison Report and queried whether PAG members need the information in two
different places and if they would still want the ability to download the data.

PAG members nodding in agreement to wanting the ability to download the data.

EJ queried where the data would be available if not on the detail tab on the OPS report.

SM advised that details at the previous level could be provided in MyFiles but that the Dashboard
would only provide details at trading party level.

TB queried the frequency at which this data would be available and what the date of refresh would
be as trading parties currently use the data as soon as it is published on the first or second working
day of the month.

PAG70 15 January 2025 6




MOSL

SM advised that data on both the Dashboard and MyFiles would be published at the same time
but that the refresh date is yet to be confirmed.

KW presented an overview of the As-Is OPS Dashboard — About Tab, as on slide 20.

JF advised that Wessex has built hover-over about information into their performance Dashboard.
SM advised that tool tips could possibly be considered and added.

KW presented an overview of the As-Is Holistic Peer Comparison, as on slide 22.

WM advised that there could be a better split for Retailer tables and that 5000 SPIDs may be too
low for a split point, noting that there was a natural split of small, medium and large Retailers.

SW advised that there is a natural split and that we could have a large, medium and small split
which would work better than the current split.

EJ queried the rationale for the different split for Wholesalers.

SW advised that the split was initially done on an obvious split but that that could be a review of
the Wholesaler split.

MOSL to review the Retailer and Wholesaler splits.
EJ encouraged members to send through email proposals on where the splits should be.

GB advised that it may not be necessary to have a further review of the Wholesaler split as there
are already further natural splits between the WOCs and WASCs Wholesalers.

KW presented an overview of Holistic Peer Comparison, as on slide 23.
SW confirmed that the scores presented would be historic scores already published by Ofwat.
GB queried whether the R-MeX and B-MeX scores would not form part of the RankSum anymore.

SW confirmed that the score will not be included for performance rectification plan processes, it is
just for information.

JF suggested having the UPRM, VOA and address items represented at a granular level on the Peer
Comparison Dashboard. Also, suggested having a visual indication of '+/-'or ‘up/down’ change in
the Total Rank.

PAG70 15 January 2025 7




MOSL

EJ queried, as MOSL is doing an R-MeX soon to be sent to Ofwat, whether it would count in
2025/2026.

SW confirmed that that the R-MeX scores would make up 2024/2025 results and noted that it has
not yet been decided whether Ofwat will be creating a BR-MeX score for shadow.

JJ advised that the current Peer Comparison presented is what gets published on the website but
that there would be a similar view on the MyMOSL holistic reporting

SM advised that a view of the UPRM, VOA and address items could possible be included in a break
down of M12.

4. Upcoming PAG workshop(s) & AOB

CD provided an overview of upcoming workshops.

CD noted that MOSL would be recruiting for a Retailer member for the Code Advisory Group and
encouraged PAG members to reach out or nominate individuals if interested.

CD noted that a Mailchimp was sent out today to trading parties with Consultation 5 timelines.
EJ reminded members that the MOSL business plan had been sent out.

CD closed the meeting.

PAG70 15 January 2025 8




